

D8.3 Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

Funding scheme	EU-H2020-Grean Deal, H2020-LC-GD-2020-3							
Project	ECF4CLIM, European Competence Framework							
	for a Low Carbon Economy and Sustainability through							
	Education							
Project Coordinator	CIEMAT, Centro de Investigaciones Energeticas,							
	Medioambientales y Tecnologicas							
Start Date of the Project	01.10.2021 Duration of project 48 months							
Contributing WP	WP8: Clustering, Outreach, and Dissemination Activities							
Tasks								
Dissemination Level	Public							
Due date	2022 March 30							
Submission date	2022 March 30							
Responsible partner	Meda Research							
Contributing	CIEMAT							
organizations								
Authors:	Marian Constantin, Anca Germizara Ciurduc-Todoran, Carmen-							
	Cerasela Constantin, Carmen Lago Rodriguez							
Version	1.0R1							



The project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 101036505



WHO WE ARE

The ECF consortium consists of ten partners. The project is coordinated by Centro de Investigaciones Energeticas, Medioambientales y Tecnologicas-CIEMAT.

Name	Country	Logo
Centro de Investigaciones Energéticas, Medioambientales y Tecnológicas – CIEMAT	ES	GOBIERNO DE ESPAÑA COMPETITIVIDAD GOBIERNO DE CONOMÍA, INDUSTRIA Y COMPETITIVIDAD Carco de Investigicons Enrigistas, Medoamberales y Teorológicas
Instituto Superior Técnico. University of Lisbon. IST	PT	TÉCNICO LISBOA
Universidad de Sevilla USE	ES	UNIVERSIDAD D SEVILLA
University of Jyväskylä JYU	FI	JYVÄSKYLÄN YLIOPISTO UNIVERSITY OF JYVÄSKYLÄ
Universitat Autònoma de Barcelona UAB	ES	UAB Universitat Autònoma de Barcelona
Meda Research Ltd MedaResearch	RO	
Instituto de Soldadura e Qualidade ISQ	PT	ISC
Trebag Szellemi Tulajdon Es Projektmenedzser Korlatolt Felelossegu Tarsasag TREBAG	ни	TR€bag
Smartwatt Energy Sercuces SA Smartwatt	PT	SMARTWATT
Que Technologies Kefalaiouchiki Etaireia QUE	GR	

D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

ABOUT THE PROJECT

Through a multidisciplinary, transdisciplinary and participatory process, ECF4CLIM develops, tests and validates a European Competence Framework (ECF) for transformational change, which will empower the educational community to take action against climate change and towards sustainable development.

Applying a novel hybrid participatory approach, rooted in participatory action research and citizen science, ECF4CLIM co-designs the ECF in selected schools and universities, by: 1) elaborating an initial ECF, supported by crowdsourcing of ideas and analysis of existing ECFs; 2) establishing the baseline of individual and collective competences, as well as environmental performance indicators; 3) implementing practical, replicable and context adapted technical, behavioural, and organisational interventions that foster the acquisition of competences; 4) evaluating the ability of the interventions to strengthen sustainability competences and environmental performance; and 5) validating the ECF.

The proposed ECF is unique in that it encompasses the interacting STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics) --related, digital and social competences, and systematically explores individual, organisational and institutional factors that enable or constrain the desired change. The novel hybrid participatory approach provides the broad educational community with: an ECF adaptable to a range of settings; new ways of collaboration between public, private and third-sector bodies; and innovative organisational models of engagement and action for sustainability (Sustainability Competence Teams and Committees).

To encourage learning-by-doing, several novel tools will be co-designed with and made available to citizens, including a digital platform for crowdsourcing, IoT solutions for real-time monitoring of selected parameters, and a digital learning space. Participation of various SMEs in the consortium maximises the broad adoption and applicability of the ECF for the required transformational change towards sustainability.

Project information	1
Project Number	1010365505
Project title	European Competence Framework
	For A Low Carbon Economy And Sustainability Through Education –
	ECF4CLIM
Starting date	01/10/2021
Duration in	48
months	
Call identifier	H2020-LCE-2017-RES-CSA



The project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No 101036505

D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

LEGAL NOTICE

The sole responsibility for the content of this publication lies with the authors. It does not necessarily reflect the opinion of the European Union. Neither the CINEA nor the European Commission is responsible for any use that may be made of the information contained therein.

All rights reserved; no part of this publication may be translated, reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise, without the written permission of the publisher.

Many of the designations used by manufacturers and sellers to distinguish their products are claimed as trademarks. The quotation of those designations in whatever way does not imply the conclusion that the use of those designations is legal without the content of the owner of the trademark.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	Executive Summary	6
2.	Objectives	7
3.	Methodology	8
4.	Target groups	13
5.	Key Performance Indicators	13
5.	What to disseminate	15
7.	Dissemination channels	16
8.	Action plan	20
9. P	rocedures	26
10.	Monitoring and evaluation	28
1	0.1 Performance Measurement	29
1	0.2 Impact	29
1	0.3 Reporting	30
11.	References	31
Anr	nex 1. Abbreviations & Acronyms	32



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This document is the Deliverable 8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM Results, project funded by the European Commission under the H2020- European Green Deal Call, under the grant agreement no. 101036505.

In accordance with the H2020 Online Manual [1] "dissemination means sharing research results with potential users - peers in the research field, industry, other commercial players and policymakers". The general objective of the sharing of the research results with the rest of the scientific community is to contribute to the general progress of the science. The communication of the project was approached in the Communication Plan [2]. The exploitation of the results, defined as the "the use of results for commercial purposes or in public policymaking" [1] is presented in a separate deliverable [3].

The main objective of the deliverable is to produce the Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM Results (PDR) is order to ensure an effective dissemination of the ECF4CLIM results to the relevant stakeholders. The PDR is a practical tool to be used by all partners to efficiently participate in the dissemination of the valuable results of the ECF4CLIM project. It considers both common activities (involving all partners or some of them) and dissemination activities initiated and developed by an individual partner organization. All of them are considered in PDR if there is a relevant contribution to the achievement of the global objectives of the dissemination.

The deliverable introduces a separate sections for the methodology explaining the main methods and tools planned to be used for the dissemination process, description of the key performance indicators (KPIs) established for different actions of the dissemination process, identification of the communication channels, description of the target audiences. The planned actions are presented separately in the Action Plan. A section is devoted to the procedures, and another one to the monitoring and evaluation.

D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

2. OBJECTIVES

The objective of the dissemination plan is to identify and organize the activities to be performed in order to reach a maximum influence/impact of the project and to prepare the exploitation activities, including the identification of the appropriate routes of the project results.

It should be noted, the dissemination means sharing of the research results with potential users, therefore a transfer of the knowledge and results to enable the use of them. The process is contributing to the "progress of science in general" [1].

The **communication process**, presented in the Communication Plan [2], is oriented to show to the society and to the stakeholders the impact and benefits of the project, whereas the **exploitation objective**, described in [3], is devoted to an effectively use of the project's results, e.g. for commercial purposes or in public policymaking, turning them into concrete values.

Both the communication and the dissemination processes will pave the way for an effective exploitation of the project results.

The **secondary objectives** of the dissemination plan are the following:

- to identify the appropriate target groups and dissemination channels for an effective dissemination of the project's results, by using a broad spectrum of dissemination activities,
- to define the implementation approach for the dissemination activities and to provide an indicative timetable,
- to disseminate the fundamental knowledge, approaches, methods and tools developed in the project and to assist the partners of the project for a correct implementation of the dissemination actions,
- to ensure an efficient coordination and cooperation within the partnership aiming the dissemination process,
- to create the conditions for an early involvement of a large number of stakeholders in the discussions and in the co-design process,
- to define the appropriate KPIs, aimed to measure and to demonstrate the effectiveness and efficiency of the dissemination activities.

D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

3. METHODOLOGY

The Dissemination Plan is a practical tool to be used by all partners to efficiently develop their dissemination activities and to contribute to the global objectives of the project. It has been made taking into account the guidelines and recommendation of the EC [1, 4].

To obtain the effectiveness of the dissemination, the process has to be pre-planned, coordinated and developed in a strategic manner to identify effective solutions, and to implement them targeting the audiences.

The Dissemination Plan defines all the measures and deadlines for the different dissemination actions. All of them were established taking into consideration the whole planning of the project and the purpose of obtaining a relevant impact. They are aligned with the major milestones in order to maximize the impacts and the implementation will be in strong interaction with all the other work packages.

The Dissemination Plan will be annually updated. The partners will be requested to send their feedback and information about the next planned activities and also about the results of the activities carried out. Some more detailed information on this process is included in a separate section dedicated to the "Monitoring".

The exploitation of the results is treated separately, the Plan for the Exploitation of ECF4CLIM Results and for Stimulating Synergies will be developed in deliverable D8.4.

The main methods and tools to achieve the dissemination process in the ECF4CLIM project are:

- (1) Publishing academic articles,
- (2) Presenting papers at international and national scientific events, conferences
- (3) Organizing ECF workshops,
- (4) Organizing the Final Conference of ECF4CLIM project,
- (5) Organizing webinars,
- (6) Organizing awards of the project,
- (7) Organizing Sustainability Competence Teams and Sustainability Competence Committees

The academic articles will be published in peer-reviewed international journals with high impact factor and using both gold and green open access. For most articles, "gold" access in an open access peer reviewed journal would be procured. This would be combined with a free repository ("green" access) of all scientific articles arising from the project on the ECF4CLIM website.



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

The publication of academic articles is in the responsibility of each partner. A supervision will be ensured by the work package leaders and by the Steering Committee according with the recommendations and procedures described in the Plan for the Dissemination. The publication will be achieved in short time after the finalization of the activities.

A Publications Committee has been created to stimulate and monitor the submission of articles to peer-reviewed journals. The Publication Committee will have regular meetings, at least one per quarter. All the important results and analysis will be oriented to peer-reviewed international journals with high impact factor and using both gold and green open access.

The dissemination activities will be based mainly on the valuable results obtained in the tasks of WP3, WP4, WP5, WP6, and WP7. The following tasks are expected to produce the most relevant results to be disseminated:

- T3.1 (Crowdsourcing),
- T3.3 (The development of an initial EFC),
- T3.4 (Expert analysis of the initial ECF),
- T3.5 (Internal and external validation of the ECF),
- T4.1 (Collective Competences for Sustainability),
- T4.2 (Individual Competences for Sustainability),
- T4.4 (Co-design of measures to promote competences, behaviors and social practices towards climate action and sustainable development),
- T5.1 (Behavioral Interventions),
- T5.2 (Structural/Environmental Interventions),
- T5.3 (Joint implementation: Participatory, reflective, and deliberative process to support the interventions),
- T6.1 (Evaluation of the collective competences: policies, measures & practices for climate action and sustainability),
- T6.2 (Evaluation of the individual competences),
- T6.4 (Participatory evaluation of the interventions),
- T6.5 (Proposals and recommendations on key components and requirements for the ECF and ways of improving social practices in education to promote climate action and sustainable development),
- T7.2 (Crowdsourcing collaborative space),
- T7.3 (Simulation tools),
- T7.4 (IoT Ecosystem for Multipurpose Monitoring),



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

- T7.5 (Learning Space / Educational Resources for Responsible Citizenship in Climate Change Prevention and Sustainable Development),
- T7.6 (Implementation, Test & Validation of the digital platform).

Generally, the dissemination will be performed immediately the finalization of each task, but in case of relevant partial results a discussion will be initiated at the level of the task. If considered appropriate the partial results will be published with respecting the rules and procedures for the dissemination and exploitation of the project's results (presented in the section Procedures of this deliverable, where the initiation of the dissemination process for a certain set of results, discussions at the level of task, WP and ECF4CLIM project, selection of the most appropriate journal, approvals, etc. are discussed in detail).

The publishing of academic articles and the **presentation of papers in different international and national scientific events** will follow similar procedures. The participation will be achieved to the most relevant events in order to optimize the use of the resources and obtain a high impact for the dissemination of the project and of the results. The presentations at international and national scientific events are in the responsibility of each partner following the rules from the Plan for the Dissemination and recommendations produced annually after the project meeting.

The main events, such as the ECF workshops and the Final Conference, will be open to a large audience and invitations will be adequately disseminated.

The **ECF workshops** will target a broad participation of the potential users of the ECF. First ECF Workshop (the Outline of the ECF) is planned for September 2022, the second one (The results and outputs, including the digital platform performances) is planned for April 2025.

The ECF Workshops will be organized by JYU as coordinator of the WP3 (Development of ECF for Climate Change and Sustainable Development). Meda Research will support JYU in the planning of the workshops (format, agenda) together with CIEMAT as project's coordinator. All partners will be involved in these actions to present their results and outputs from the implementation of the ECF within the demonstration sites and also for the construction and functioning of the digital platform.

The first announcement of the event will be prepared and distributed via web-site, digital platform, and e-mail at least one month before. The second will be distributed at least 2 weeks before the event, and will include the detailed Agenda. JYU will produce the minutes and conclusions of the workshops. A wider participation is targeted beyond the project partners and educational communities from the intervention sites.

The **ECF4CLIM Final Conference** is in the responsibility of Meda Research and CIEMAT. It will be organized in Spring 2025 in agreement with the evolution of the project and other concurrent events. All partners will participate and involved in the presentation of



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

the most relevant results of the activities of the project. CIEMAT, IST, JYU, and Meda Research as national coordinator for the activities on the demonstration sites will be responsible with the inviting the school communities to participate in the final conference. All the partners will invite representatives of the target groups, policymakers and implementers of the climate actions. To allow the participation of a maximum number of interested groups and individuals, the conference will be organized as a combined on-line and face-to-face event.

The first announcement of the Final Conference will be distributed by the project channels (web-site, digital platform), by e-mail, and by direct interactions with the educational communities, at least two months before the event. The second announcement will include a detailed Agenda, and will be distributed at least one month before the event. Both are in the responsibility of CIEMAT and Meda Research.

Two **webinars** will be organized to offer opportunities to the students to present and share the ECF testing and validation activities performed in their schools with the other schools participating in the project, as well as with other external audiences.

The webinars will be organized by Meda Research. First webinar is planned for M34 (July 2024), the second one for M38 (November 2024). Since the events will be centered on the exchange of experience and practices among the schools, the national coordinators for the demonstration sites (CIEMAT, IST, JYU, and Meda Research) will play a central role.

The webinars will be announced by the project channels (web-site, digital platform), by e-mail, and by direct interactions with the educational communities, at least one month before each event. The announcement will include the tentative agenda and the objectives.

An **Award for the Best Implementation Activity** is planned to be integrated in the Final Conference event (spring 2025) and will be in the responsibility of Meda Research. The national team coordinators for the intervention sites will contribute to the format and to the organizing of the event. A set of criteria will be developed at least 1 year before and disseminated by the project channels (web-site, digital platform) and discussed with the educational communities.

The dissemination of the main results by using the website channel is planned to offer the audience the opportunity to consult the deliverables of the project and other important results. Most of the deliverables have a public status; therefore, they will be disseminated in the final form send to the Commission and immediately after the approval by the project management. A dedicated webpage was created to host the main results and disseminate them with the following sub-pages: (1) https://www.ecf4clim.net/deliverables, (2) <a href="https://www.ecf4clim.net/deliverables, (3) <a href="https://www.ecf4clim.net/deliverables)



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

The tools created in the project will be disseminated by the **Digital Platform** channel. The audience will have access both to the presentation/description of the tools and their effective use. The access to the digital platform is also ensured by a dedicated page of the website (https://www.ecf4clim.net/digital-platform) presenting the platform and offering the access.

The dissemination of results by the social media pages is planned to reach different segment the target audiences. Dedicated LinkedIn page (https://www.linkedin.com/company/ecf4clim) and YouTube page (https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCYCEI1uPSPKZvBmGX tBvcg) were created for this purpose. The Facebook page (https://www.facebook.com/ECF4CLIM/) is planned to be used mainly for the communication purpose. The LinkedIn page will create the opportunity to reach a broad spectrum of professional interested in education for climate actions. The YouTube page will offer access to the video materials produced by the project.

The dissemination activities, targeting wider audiences, will take place through the publication and dissemination of key deliverables and project factsheets on the website, and participation in networks and initiatives organized by third parties.

The use of the website, the digital platform and the social media to disseminate our results and tools will be fine-tuned according to the up-dated version of our Communication Plan. This will be properly reflected in D8.6 (Report on the communication and dissemination activities).

A special note considering the impact of **pandemic situation** (COVID-19) on the dissemination activities. It is possible this global health crisis will continue and long-duration constraints in different countries may affect the organization of events in the classical format, such as the conferences, webinars, and workshops. Therefore, a protective approach should be adopted as Plan B. Dissemination approaches, methods and tools, especially online ones, have in such context a great value. The project's website will contain dynamic information that will be updated regularly. The social media pages will play a central role to keep a high interest on the evolution of the project and on its outcomes. The regular newsletters will allow to stay in touch with different stakeholders. The face-to-face events may be changed into online or hybrid events. Essential meetings should, whenever possible, be held via videoconferencing instead of postponing them completely. Appropriate measures will be agreed at the level of project's management taking into consideration the specific evolution in the EU and participating countries.

D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

4. TARGET GROUPS

Unlike the communication process (targeting the society and the stakeholders [2]) the dissemination is directly oriented to the potential users of the developed tools, approaches, methods, and knowledge. The process is contributing to the progress of science in general [1].

Considering the peculiarities of the ECF4CLIM project the following target groups are identified:

- (1) Scientific community
- (2) National, regional, and European authorities
- (3) **Educational communities** from the EU member states, interested to contribute to climate actions,
- (4) **Different NGOs and organizations** acting in the field of education and climate actions,
- (5) Other policy-makers at regional, national, and European level,
- (6) Local communities interested in implementing climate actions,
- (7) General **public** interested in **citizen science** and learning on the climate actions.

The dissemination process is broadly oriented to these target groups with a special focus on scientific communities, educational communities, authorities and policy-makers. The engagement of the stakeholders is crucial to reach a high impact of the project, consequently adequate measures are planned for the dissemination of the results in order to prepare different target groups for the implementing in their current practices.

5. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

A set of key performance indicators (KPIs) were established for different actions of the communication and dissemination process, together with the measures planned to maximize the impact, and proposed targets. They are presented in Table 5.1.

The Table 5.2 he estimated planned number of persons to be reached by ECF4CLIM dissemination activities are presented. These numbers reflect per year the number of new persons to be reached per category – scientific community, authorities in education, authorities in environmental protection/climate actions, educational communities, etc.

Table 5.1. Key performance indicators and measures to maximize impact



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

Action	Measures to maximize the impact	КРІ	Target
Workshops	Inform and engage the community; present key findings; gather intelligence and feedback from stakeholders	No of participants	100
	Holders	No of workshops	2
Webinars	Knowledge transfer	No of participants	300
		No of webinars	12
SCT meetings		No of participants	900
		No of meetings	84
SCC meetings		No of participants	400
		No of meetings	34
Final Conference	Ensure a good visibility of the main results for the targeted stakeholders	No of contributions	20
		No of participants	80
Participation in external events	Ensure good visibility in the relevant community	No of contributions to 3rd party events	20
Publications	conference proceedings, peer- reviewed publications	No of publications	20
Deliverables	project deliverables	No of accessing	200
		No of public deliverables	44
Tools	Tools developed by the project and hosted on the digital platform	No of accessing	400
		No of tools	7



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

Table 5.2. Estimated number of persons to be reached by ECF4CLIM dissemination process, per category and year

Target group	Total
Scientific community	100
Authorities in education and environmental protection/climate actions (national and regional)	48
Educational communities	1500
NGOs and other organizations	40
Local communities	700
General public	200

5. WHAT TO DISSEMINATE

Dissemination is an act of spreading information, knowledge, and opinions to the targeted audiences. The ultimate purpose of dissemination is to create the appropriate conditions for the target users to take up or to adopt an innovation, information, or resources [5].

This section describes the main outcomes of ECF4CLIM project to be disseminated. The aim of ECF4CLIM project is to co-design and test a European Competence Framework for climate change and sustainable development that is transdisciplinary and will enable and empower the citizens to act towards the necessary transition towards sustainability. Towards this goal, a broad engagement of students, teachers, parents and the wider educational community is planned, contributing to climate action and fostering transformational change towards sustainable development in the spirit of 'citizen science'.

The project will gather these direct participants in different co-designing processes. A set of tools (such as the competence framework, applications, digital platform) will be developed stimulating changes in the personal and collective behaviors, habits, routines, and social norms of the various actor groups with the aim to foster sustainable development, in particular to produce an effective and large participation in the climate actions.



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

Without exhausting the list, the dissemination process will be based on some outcomes of the project, such as:

- (1) The European Competence Framework (ECF) for climate change and sustainable development (knowledge, skills, and attitudes needed in the society),
- (2) Hybrid participatory approach for the co-design process, the testing and the evaluation of the ECF,
- (3) Tools: IoT ecosystem space, learning space and simulator space
- (4) Results from the baseline assessment for the individual and collective competences, and for the environmental performance of the pilot schools and universities,
- (5) Catalogue of interventions in the demonstration sites as examples of good practices and methodological support for the implementation in similar contexts,
- (6) Crowdsourcing results
- (7) Results from the evaluation of the implementation process
- (8) Proposals and recommendations on key components and requirements for the ECF, and ways of improving social practices in education to promote competences in climate action and sustainable development.
- (9) Development of the digital platform (concept, architecture, interfaces and functional specifications, tools, methods, participation)
- (10) Results from the use of: crowdsourcing space and simulation tools, Internet of Things (IoT) solutions and data for real-time monitoring of the selected parameters, and learning space

7. DISSEMINATION CHANNELS

During the last two decades, the dissemination of the research was significantly disrupted by the internet and digitally networked technologies. Most of the scientific journals move online, many of the scholarly books are both in online and in printed format. Webinars become more popular due to the important advantages of cost reduction and easy access. In the last two years, the pandemics forced the movement of the conferences and workshops from face-to-face to the online format, sometimes to a hybrid format.

The digital dissemination is nowadays available in multiple forms such as websites, blogs, wikis, social media pages, digital version of the journals, databases for papers, etc.



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

In the last years there is a tendency of the researchers to keep open notebooks [6] to make their research findings public in real time. However, the classical methods such as the face-to-face events cannot be neglected due to their good characteristics in terms of knowledge dissemination, creating real links among researchers and teams, more open dialogue, etc.

Due to the pandemics a limitation of the face-to-face events may appear, and consequently the movement of the most dissemination activities in online channels will occur.

On the other hand, there is a tendency to act more efficiently to create a greater public understanding of science and research. Since the '80s there are continuous efforts to engage the non-research audiences in the dissemination processes. Such efforts include publication in popular science magazines, shows on televisions, podcasts on radio or internet. In terms of publishing the scientific results the tendency is to create more opportunities for wider dissemination and public engagement by encouraging the open science [7]. Therefore, a reshaping of the dissemination process is needed due to the globalization of research, inclusion of new stakeholders in the target audiences, accessibility of the communication and dissemination means.

In the ECF4CLIM project the dissemination activities will use the following **channels:**

- (1) **Webinars** will be based on **on-line resources** and will bring together educational communities and other external audiences. The main objective is to disseminate results obtained in the ECF testing and validation activities, to discuss and extract relevant feedback from the different experiences of the involved schools.
- (2) Workshops will be organized in classical format (face to face) or hybrid form and will be dedicated to disseminate the initial ECF, the results and outputs and digital platform performances. The considered participation is a broader one beyond the project partners and educational communities from the intervention sites.
- (3) The Final Conference will be organized in a combined on-line and face-to-face event classical format. The final conference will disseminate the main outcomes of the project to a broad audience (academics, educational communities, authorities, policy-makers, NGOs, public, implementers of climate actions, etc.). The final conference will be based on plenary sessions and, if necessary, on poster sessions. The poster session will be also available on-line by posting the papers on the website in a dedicated section of the *Events* page.



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

- (4) **The website** is used both for communication and dissemination. Two sub-pages (*Deliverables*, and *Dissemination materials*) of the page Results are dedicated to the main dissemination activities through the website.
- (5) The social-media channels used for the dissemination process are LinkedIn (targeting the professionals interested in education for climate actions) and YouTube (targeting a larger audience including the general public). The Facebook channel will be used mainly for the communication actions, but sometimes it will announce different dissemination activities by posting announcement and redirecting the audience to the web site, digital platform, or LinkedIn, YouTube channels.
- **(6) The Digital platform** channel is devoted to allow the on-line access of a large spectrum of users to the main tools produced by the project allowing a direct dissemination of some of the main outcomes.
- (7) **Scientific journals** channel consists of a set of peer-reviewed international journals with high impact factor and using open access. The Steering Committee will approve a list of recommended scientific journals for the publication of ECF4CLIM results. List will be annually updated. The **preliminary list**, by the release of the present deliverable is presented in Table 7.1, including the impact factor (for 2022-2023) and journal ranking (SCImago Journal Rank, SJR).

Table 7.1 The list of targeted journals

	Journal	Impact factor	Journal ranking
1	Energy Policy	7.576	2.292
2	Sustainable development	8.562	2.035
3	The Journal of Environmental Education	3.550	0.955
4	International Journal of Sustainability in Higher Education	4.120	0.752
5	Environmental Politics	5.147	1.788
6	Energy Research & Social Science	8.514	2.171
7	Global Environmental Change	9.532	2.945
8	Journal of Integrative Environmental Sciences	3.143	0.621
9	Evaluation and Policy-Making	3.704	1.829



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

10	Environmental Science & Technology	11.357	3.123
11	Journal of Environmental Management	9.61	1.678
12	Science of the Total Environment	10.754	1.946
13	Environmental Research	8.431	1.635
14	Journal of Environmental Sciences	6.796	1.392
15	Environmental Education Research Journal	3.900	1.122

(8) Conferences, workshops and other scientific meetings channel will be used to reach a large audience, especially from scientific community and educational communities.

A preliminary list of targeted conferences:

- (ICESD) International Conference on Education, Sustainability and Development,
- (GSDC) Global Sustainable Development Congress,
- (ESD) European Conference on Education for Sustainable Development
- (ESWD) European Sustainable Development Week,
- (ESDN) European Sustainable Development Network,
- (CONAMA) Congreso Nacional de Medioambiente,
- (AScUS) Unconference on Urban Sustainability
- (SDEWES) Conference on sustainable development of energy, water and environment
- (FES) Congresos FES Federación Española de Sociología
- (ITD) International Transdisciplinary Conference ITD-Alliance,
- (ECOS) International Conference on Efficiency, Cost, Optimization and Environmental Impact of Energy Systems
- (CCS) Catalan Congress of Sociology
- (ECER) European Conference of Educational Research
- (NERA) Nordic Educational Research Association
- (FERA) Finnish Educational Research Association



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

(9) Direct interaction with the educational communities by organizing, in common, climate actions and use the approaches, methods and tools developed in the frame of ECF4CLIM project. In such a way, the dissemination process will perform a translation of the research outcomes into the practice with possible impact on the practices and policies. On the other hand, the use of this channel is very important to allow the co-design process and to extract valuable ideas and approaches from the stakeholders and to disseminate them by all the other channels of the project.

Networking dissemination by sharing information, data, and results through the existing European networks, such as Education for climate (https://education-for-climate.ec.europa.eu/community/climate edu resources/topics), Environmental and Sustainability Education Research, ESER (https://eera-ecer.de/networks/30-environmental-and-sustainability-education-research-eser) and GDSO dedicated platform, or the Horizon Results booster services.

https://www.horizonresultsbooster.eu/

The use of the website, the digital platform, and the social media to disseminate our results and tools will be fine-tuned according to the up-dated version of our Communication Plan. This will be properly reflected in D8.6 (Report on the communication and dissemination activities)

8. ACTION PLAN

An Action Plan of the ECF4CLIM project is presented in Table 8.2 consisting of the all activities devoted to the dissemination during the implementation of the project. It will be updated in accordance with the progress of the project, and possible new appeared needs.

Many of the activities and actions included in the Action Plan were already defined in the Grant Agreement and therefore the allocation of responsibilities among partners and the respective budget are already partially defined.

In Table 8.2 the measures defining the dissemination strategies to reach the different target groups is presented with the aim to make the dissemination more effective considering the peculiarities of the considered audiences.

A publication strategy is defined below to coordinate the scientific publication at the level of the consortium and to maximize the impact.



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results



Table 8.1, The Dissemination Plan

																							Мо	nth																							
Activity	Resp.	1	2	3 4	1 5	6	7	8	9 1	10 1	11 1	12 1	.3 :	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	32	33	34	35	36	37	38	39	40 4	11 4	12 4	3 4	.4 4	.5 4	46	47 4
Publishing academic articles	WP Leaders																																														
Presentation of papers at international and national scientific events																																															
Organizing ECF workshops																																															
Organizing the Final Conference of ECF4CLIM project																																															
Organizing webinars																																															
Organizing awards of the project																																															
Organizing SCTs and SCCs																																															
Deliverables																																															
Tools																																															
Set-up the working group for publication (WGP)																																															



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

Table 8.2, The dissemination strategy to the different target groups

	Target group	Channels	Dissemination strategy
1	Scientific community	Scientific journals Final conferences Website	 Impact Factor: publication in Peer-Reviewed Journals with high impact factor in the field of education, sustainability, environment, and climate change Open Access: in line with the EU H2020 requirements. Social Media and Online Platforms: promote the research on professional networking sites (e.g., ResearchGate, LinkedIn), academic social media (e.g., Twitter), through the project's website and institution's website to reach a wider audience Collaboration and Networking: foster collaboration with other researchers by sharing the work, attending seminars, and participating in research forums or online communities Long-Term Preservation: ensure the long-term accessibility by archiving in trusted repositories or databases
2	Educational communities	Workshops Webinars Digital platform Final Conference Website	 develop workshops tailored to educators' needs, focusing on practical implementation of sustainability practices in the educational context use the features of the project's website (user-friendly, visually appealing, responsive, accessible, and optimized for search engines) Keep the website updated with the latest project developments Strengthen the partnership with schools, colleges, and universities to host and promote these workshops Incorporate hands-on activities, case studies, and group discussions to make the workshops interactive and informative Use the project website and digital platforms to promote webinars and



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

3	European Broader community of education for sustainable	Networking activities Website Digital platform	provide a registration process for participants Record webinars and make them accessible on your website for those who could not attend live sessions Identify relevant educational conferences and submit proposals to present our findings Attend conferences to network with educators, researchers, and stakeholders interested in sustainability in education Join educational forums, groups, and online communities where educators gather to discuss sustainability and share your project's insights Continuously evaluate the effectiveness of our dissemination efforts through web analytics, social media metrics, and participant feedback Participate in the networking activities organised by GDSO Present the success stories pf the project in the dissemination materials
	development	Final Conference Workshops Webinars	coordinated by GDSO - Promote the tools, methods, knowledge, and data by presentations in the networking events
4	Local communities	Digital platform Website	 Maintain an active presence on local social media platforms, sharing regular updates, photos, and engaging content to keep the community informed and engaged Tailor the project's messages to resonate with the local community's values and priorities. Highlight how the sustainability project's results directly benefit and align with their interests Identify local influencers, community leaders, or respected individuals who can serve as project ambassadors. Foster a sense of community ownership and involvement by



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

			engaging residents and organizations throughout the project and dissemination process - Utilize local media outlets, such as newspapers, radio stations, and community newsletters, to share project updates and results - Invite citizens to use the interactive tools of the Digital Platform
5	Stakeholders - Authorities in education - Authorities in environment, climate - Policymakers - NGOs	Digital platform Website Workshops Webinars Final Conference	 Highlight how the project's results align with their objectives and how it can address their concerns or challenges Develop concise policy briefs and reports that summarize the project's methodology, key findings, recommendations, and potential policy implications Organize workshops, seminars, or briefings including specific sections with the participation of policy makers, authorities at the national and local levels, NGOs Partner with relevant NGOs that share an interest in education for sustainability Highlight real-world case studies and success stories that demonstrate the positive impact of our project on local and national levels

As already mentioned, the use of the website, the digital platform, and the social media to disseminate our results and tools will be fine-tuned according to the up-dated version of our Communication Plan. This will be properly reflected in D8.6 (Report on the communication and dissemination activities)

Publishing scientific results produced by a consortium involves a well-coordinated strategy to ensure that research findings are disseminated effectively, following best practices in scientific communication.

The objective of the publication strategy is to create the condition for an effective dissemination of the valuable results of ECF4CLIM project to the scientific community to stimulate the collaboration for a most performant education for sustainability.



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

Data management and sharing are approached by the rules established by data management procedures (WP2). A working group for publication (WGP) have been established (M24) in order to facilitate the identification of the most valuable results for publication and the case-by-case approach.

The final selection of journals will take into consideration the recommended journals (Table 7.1) with their impact factors and journal rankings. Proposals for publication will be planned at the level of consortium and the contributions and publication will be discussed at the level of WGP.

The WGP will plan the most relevant publication of the research results and will foster collaboration among consortium members for co-authored multidisciplinary publications.

For each paper the authors will be responsible to address intellectual property and licensing concerns. The WPG will propose measures ensuring that consortium members understand copyright, licensing, and data sharing agreements.

9. PROCEDURES

All partners are invited to understand the role of the dissemination procedures and to apply them in the current activities of ECF4CLIM project. The dissemination process will respect the following steps and recommendations:

- (1) The dissemination activities will respect the Dissemination Plan in terms of initiation, deadlines, coordination and responsibilities.
- (2) The project is promoting open and transparent research to maximise the impact of the invested public resources, by knowledge transfer, by benefits of research, encouraging the collaboration and improving the community engagement.
- (3) Any researcher involved in the ECF4CLIM project may initiate the publishing of certain results following the present rules of the dissemination process: (i) a discussion at the level of task and work package, originating the results, will be launched to properly identify all the contributors and any IPR elements, (ii) the initiative will be communicated to the WP8 leader in order to be included in the Dissemination Plan and monitored, as well as to the project Coordinator, (iii) the selected journal or event will be agreed at the level of project coordination in order to maximize the impact, together with



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

the open access form, (iv) the agreement of all partners contributing to the results will be obtained on the final form of the paper or presentation.

- (4) The authors of the paper/presentation are responsible for the entire content including: (i) accurately report on methodology, data and findings, (ii) present conclusions fully justified by the results and acknowledge any finding limitations appropriately, (iii) disclose any potential, perceived or actual conflicts of interest, (iv) acknowledge funding bodies, partner institutions, and collaborators.
- (5) Any publication/dissemination material (in any form, including electronic) will acknowledge the EU-H2020-Grean Deal, H2020-LC-GD-2020-3 for the provided financial support: "the research was performed in ECF4CLIM project funded by European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No. 101036505". The EU emblem (EU flag) must be displayed together with the text referring the programme and the number of the grant agreement. When displayed together with another logo, the EU emblem must have appropriate prominence.
- (6) Any dissemination of results (except scientific papers) must indicate that those only reflect the author's view, thus excluding the European Commission responsibility of the information it contains. For example: The content reflects only the author's view. The Commission is not responsible for any use that may be made of the information that it contains. A legal notice is added to project material when deemed relevant. Example: This [document, presentation...] is intended for information about ECF4CLIM project only. ECF4CLIM consortium makes no warranties, express, implied or statutory as to the information provided in this material. Neither the European Commission nor ECF4CLIM Consortium are liable for any use that may be made of the information that it contains. All rights reserved. Copyright: ECF4CLIM Project.
- (7) A link to the publication will be uploaded on the ECF4CLIM web-site, immediately after the availability of the online access, the link will be inserted on the page *Results*, sub-page *Dissemination materials*.
- (8) All deliverables marked as public will be available to be downloaded on the ECF4CLIM website.
- (9) Dissemination of results from deliverables classified as restricted needs to be approved by the Consortium or the involved partners, before any release can take place. A copy of the paper/presentation will be stored in the repository available on the page *Private Area*.

D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

- (10) In the dissemination process the approved materials, approaches, methods, and tools will be used, according with the Dissemination Plan and decisions of the management structures of the project,
- (11) The initiation of a new dissemination activity is possible after informing of the consortium; a planning of the dissemination in terms of methods, tools, resource will be discussed in the frame of WP8, and, if it necessary in the Steering Committee; a positive decision is needed to launch the activity.
- (12) The progress of the dissemination activities will be reported by the responsible of the dissemination activity and by the involved partners to the WP8.

10. MONITORING AND EVALUATION

The main objective of the monitoring and evaluation is to ensure a high-quality execution of the dissemination plan.

Although the project has already established an overall evaluation strategy to ensure the quality of all the activities and results, a separate monitoring focused on dissemination activities is vital. The impact of those activities significantly contributes to a successful implementation characterized by a fruitful transfer of knowledge to the scientific and educational communities, and also to the other stakeholders.

The quality of the dissemination activities will be assessed by the Steering Committee.

Project partners shall report all performed dissemination activities to WP8 leader, no later than 30 days after the activity takes place. This reporting procedure shall include information regarding the performed dissemination activities, including, in case of events, the received feedback obtained from the participants.

Monitoring can be broken down into

- performance
- impact,
- · reporting,

D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

10.1 Performance Measurement

The effectivity of the Dissemination Plan will be measured according to the following indicators:

- number of published scientific papers in peer reviewed journal, grouped in categories open "gold" access and open "green" access
- impact factor of each publication (source: dissemination reporting from partners),
- number of papers presented in international events, (source: dissemination reporting from partners), (source: dissemination reporting from partners),
- number of persons attending the presentation,
- number of visitors accessing the *Results* page of the project website, (source: web analytics tools),
- number of followers of the *LinkedIn* social media page, (source: social media analytics tools),
- number of participants in the planned events of the ECF4CLIM project (workshops, webinars, final conference), (source: event's minutes produced by the organisers),
- number of accessing of the tools developed and stored on the digital platform (source: digital platform analytics tools)
- number of references mentioning the project in other scientific papers or presentation in different events, (source: dissemination reporting from partners),

As mentioned, the use of the website, the digital platform and the social media to disseminate our results and tools will be fine-tuned according to the up-dated version of our Communication Plan. This will be properly reflected in D8.6 (Report on the communication and dissemination activities).

10.2 Impact

The impact may be used to measure and assess the disseminateation activities in terms of their relevance and quality. The assessment can help the consortium to understand the level of success in reaching the target audiences, to produce a relevant impact, and also to ensure the sustainability of the project's results.



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

Impact is often measured through indicators; both quantitative and qualitative should be considered for the activity/action. In Table 10.2.1 a set of indicators and tentative performance targets are presented.

Table 10.2.1 Indicators for the impact of the dissemination and tentative performance targets

Indicator	Target	Source and methodology
Number of published scientific papers in	8	Report on the dissemination
peer reviewed journals		activities
Number of papers presented in	12	Report on the dissemination
international events		activities
Number of persons attending the	500	Report on the dissemination
presentations (international events)		activities
Number of papers presented in national	20	Report on the dissemination
events		activities
Number of persons attending the	500	Report on the dissemination
presentations (national events)	300	activities
Number of visitors accessing the <i>Results</i>	500	Web analytics tools
page of the project website		Web analytics tools
Accumulated number of followers on	80	LinkedIn
ECF4CLIM LinkedIn	- 00	analytics tools
Number of participants in the planned	400	Report on the dissemination
events of the ECF4CLIM project		activities
Number of accessing of the tools		
developed and stored on the digital	400	web analytics tools
platform		
Number of references to the project		Report on the dissemination
presented in other scientific papers or	10	activities
presentation in different events		detivities

10.3 Reporting

To facilitate an accurate monitoring and assessment of the dissemination activities, and to understand the impact of the actions carried out, all partners will register the dissemination activities that they implement. In this sense, a devoted section space in the private area of the website will be available to report every dissemination activity made by the consortium members. Appropriate form will be available on the website to be used by the partners.



D8.3, Plan for the Dissemination of ECF4CLIM results

All partners will consider the dissemination procedures established in the Plan for the Dissemination.

11. REFERENCES

- [1] European Commission, Dissemination & Exploitation of results, https://ec.europa.eu/research/participants/docs/h2020-funding-guide/grants/grant-management/dissemination-of-results en.htm
- [2] M.Constantin et al, "Communication Plan", D8.1, ECF4CLIM project, December 2021
- [3] M.Constantin et al, "Plan for the Exploitation of ECF4CLIM Results and for Stimulating Synergies", D8.4, ECF4CLIM project, March 2022
- [4] European Commission, <u>20210330 how-to-make-full-use-of-the-results-of-your-project h2020 en.pdf</u> (europa.eu)
- [5] Fincher, S. (2000) From transfer to transformation: Towards a framework for successful dissemination of engineering education. Published in Frontiers in Education Conference
- [6] A. Clinio, S. Albagli, "Open Notebook Science as an Emerging Epistemic Culture within the Open Science Movement", Revue Française des Sciences de l'information et de La Communication, no. 11 (August), 10.4000/rfsic.3186. 2017
- [7] P. Sengupta P, M.C. Shanahan, "Open Science, Public Engagement and the University", ArXiv:1702.04855 [Physics]. 2017. http://arxiv.org/abs/1702.04855

ANNEX 1. ABBREVIATIONS & ACRONYMS

CINEA European Climate Infrastructure and Environment Executive Agency

EC European Commission

ECF European Competence Framework

EU European Union

IoT Internet of Things

IPR Intellectual Property Rights

KPIs Key Performance Indicators

NGOs Non-Governmental Organizations

PDR Plan for Dissemination of ECF4CLIM Results

SMEs Small and Medium size Enterprises

STEM Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics